

FOOD BANK OF THE SOUTHERN TIER
Nominating & Corporate Governance Committee Meeting
October 19, 2018
8:30-10:00 AM

AGENDA

TOPIC	FACILITATOR	ACTION	TIME
1. Welcome & Call to Order	Grace Kelly		5
2. Opening Prayer	Mary Pat Dolan		5
3. Approval of July 26, 2018 Mtg. Minutes	Grace Kelly	Approve	5
4. Check-in	Grace Kelly		15
5. Follow-up Items: a. Merging Audit & Finance Committees b. CCDOR Compliance Plan	Grace Kelly/ Natasha Thompson	Discussion	25
6. 2019 Slate & Committee Appointments a. Follow up on BOD Member Conversations b. BOD Prospect Recommendations	Grace Kelly/ Natasha Thompson	Discussion	25
7. Other Business	Grace Kelly	Discuss	10

Next Meeting

December 6, 2018 8:30-10:00 AM

Opening Prayer: Mary Pat Dolan

If you plan to join the meeting by ZOOM, please inform Caroline Tolbert

FOOD BANK OF THE SOUTHERN TIER
 Nominating & Corporate Governance Committee Meeting Minutes
 July 26, 2018
 8:30-10:00AM

Committee Member	X	Unable to Attend
Grace Kelly (chair)	X	
Bill Powell	X	
Maureen Ferrell	X	
Dave Radin	X	
Mary Pat Dolan	X (on phone)	
Ex-Officio		
Natasha Thompson	X	
Nancy Miller		X
Staff		
Jennifer Bertron	X	
Caroline Tolbert		X
Guest		
Lindsay Gozzi-Theobald	X (on phone)	

1. Welcome & Call to Order

Grace Kelly called the meeting to order at 8:32 am.

2. Opening Prayer

Dave Radin led the opening prayer.

3. Approval of June 7, 2018 Mtg. Minutes

Maureen Ferrell made a motion to approve the June 7, 2018 minutes with the noted changes. Bill Powell seconded. All were in favor. None opposed.

4. Check-In

All present gave an update in their personal and/or professional lives.

5. Follow-Up Items

a. Merging Audit & Finance Committees

Lindsay Gozzi-Theobald, Chief Compliance Officer for Catholic Charities, provided information about merging the Audit & Finance Audit Committees. It appears that many of main responsibility of the Audit Committee can be merged into the Finance Committee as long as Audit is listed as an agenda item. Will need to determine the flow of information related to the Whistleblower Policy – can go through the N&CG Committee, Finance Committee or the Board of Directors. The Board will review the current Diocese Whistleblower Policy and make a determination based on that.

- b. Review BOD Orientation & Education Policy
Streamlined and updated previous policy to make it more concise and easy to use. Discussed Finance Committee Policy and the roles of Finance Director (Catholic Charities) and Chief Operating Officer (FBST) – some of the language was inconsistent. Dave Radin also suggested including Mentors of new BOD members in any conversations.

All agreed to move forward with the updated Policy.

- c. Advocacy Committee Chair Update
Will continue as an ad-hoc committee rather than becoming a formal committee of the BOD. Mark Bordeau is the current Chair. He will be terming out of the BOD, but can continue as the Chair of the Advocacy Committee because it is an ad-hoc committee.
- d. Development Committee Chair Update
John Bayne has accepted the role of Development Committee Chair now that Dave Radin is terming out. A vice-chair will be identified to assist when he's not available.

6. BOD Composition & Future Planning

- a. Follow up on BOD Member Conversations
Discussed BOD possibilities and the timeframe for recruiting. Current possibilities include Randy Rhoades, Keith Vaughn, and Mike McDarby. Michael Eisner is still not confirmed to return and Natasha will follow up in September. Rachel Rich is not available and Lisa Capek has decided not to pursue a committee or board placement.
- b. BOD Prospect Recommendations: Anis Fadul
All agreed that Anis Fadul would be a good addition. He works at Corning Inc (Sullivan Park), has been in the area for over 10 years and was the lead fundraiser for the Corning Edge Tour D Keuka team. His placement would exceed the Corning quota – which is a Feeding America guideline, not a rule. Grace will contact to determine interest.

7. Other Business

Lindsay provided a CCDOR Compliance Update
Reviewed the first year of the hotline which received 25 calls – 15 were client complaints that were not misdirected, 8 calls related to HR, and the remainder were compliance. There was 1 significant investigation resulting in a 5-page work plan. As a result there will be an Effectiveness Review/Audit which is currently out to bid. Once completed, high level results will be shared with Executive Staff

Information security is still critical even though HIPPA does not apply to us. Ransomware is increasing and additional resources are needed, possibly an Information Security Officer.

There is a draft of a centralized compliance plan that will be ready to roll out by the first of year. This will include an online BOD conflict of interest survey and will be rolled out in Feb 2019 for FBST. Committee would like to review prior to roll out.

<i>Follow Up Items</i>	<i>Person Responsible</i>	<i>Due Date</i>
Send Diocese Whistleblower Policy for Board review	Lindsay Gozzi-Theobald	
Send copy of conflict of interest form/policy and test survey for Board review	Lindsay Gozzi-Theobald	
Work with Finance Committee to update their policy - clarify COO and Finance Director (Catholic Charities) roles and responsibilities	NRT?	
Talk to Meghan about Vice Chair candidates	NRT	After Aug 13
Check donor history with any BOD candidates	NRT?	
Send Doodle Poll for next meeting	NRT	
Reconnect with Michael Eisner	NRT	September
Contact Anis Fadul	Grace	

Next meeting is scheduled for 10/4. Mary Pat will not be available until after 10/10. Natasha will send out a doodle poll to see if another date works better for the group.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:50.

Minutes respectfully submitted by,

Jennifer Bertron

FOOD BANK OF THE SOUTHERN TIER

Audit Committee

Critical Task List Tracking Calendar

Task	May	Nov	As Needed	Notes
A. General				
1. To develop and maintain free and open means of communication with the Board, the Food Bank of the Southern Tier’s certified public accountants, the Food Bank of the Southern Tier’s internal auditors, and the financial and general management of the Food Bank of the Southern Tier.			x	Finance Com
2. To engage independent counsel or other advisors, as necessary, to undertake investigations within the scope of its duties.			x	CCDOR Compliance
3. To perform any other activities as the Committee deems appropriate, or as are requested by the Board, consistent with the operating principles and practices and the Food Bank of the Southern Tier’s bylaws.			x	???
4. To review and reassess the adequacy of the operating principles and practices and committee charter annually and recommend any proposed substantive changes to the Board for approval.		x		???
5. To present an annual report of activities to the Board, including any material changes to the operating principles and practices and the committee charter; along with an evaluation of the Committee’s performance. The Chairman shall provide periodic reports to the Board as required.		x		All Committees
6. To review annually changes in legislation that may affect the requirements relating to legal or regulatory matters that may affect the financial statements or organizational		x		Finance Com
B. Financial Statements and Internal Controls				
1. To review with management and the certified public accountant the annual audited financial statements. To accept the financial statements and recommend their approval by	x			Finance Com
2. To review with the Finance Director of Catholic Charities the process for annually determining the adequacy of controls over financial reporting and other financial systems. The review shall include an examination of any material changes or deficiencies in such controls and steps taken to cure the deficiencies.	x			Finance Com
3. To review disclosures of all material off-balance sheet arrangements.	x			Finance Com
4. Review UPMIFA/NYPMIFA Regulations			x	Finance Com
C. Certified Public Accountants				
1. To represent the Agency in the process of selecting an auditor as needed.			x	CCDOR Audit Com
2. To meet with the certified public accountants without management present at least annually or as needed.		x		Finance Com
3. To meet as needed with the certified public accountants before commencing annual audits, to review the general scope and risk assessment procedures of the audit, to discuss areas where the Committee may desire special emphasis, and to evaluate the approach for testing the internal control structure.		x		Finance Com

4. To review at least annually:				Finance Com
a. Critical accounting policies and practices to be used in the audit.			x	Finance Com
b. Alternative treatments of financial information within GAAP that have been discussed with Food Bank of the Southern Tier management, ramifications of the use of such alternative disclosure and treatments, and the treatment preferred by the certified public accountant.			x	Finance Com
c. Other material written communication between the certified public accountants and the Food Bank of the Southern Tier management, such as any management letter, schedule of unadjusted differences or engagement letter.			x	Finance Com
5. To annually review the performance of the certified public accountants.	x			Finance Com
6. To discuss with the public accountants all significant relationships the accountants have with the Food Bank of the Southern Tier.	x			CCDOR Audit Com
7. To approve all audit and non-audit services provided by the certified public accountants, including tax services.			x	CCDOR Audit Com
8. To review with the certified public accountant and Food Bank of the Southern Tier management any problems or difficulties encountered in the course of the audit work.			x	Finance Com
9. To address any unresolved disputes between management and the certified public accountants.			x	CCDOR Audit Com
10. The Committee shall ensure that the certified public accountants are prohibited from performing any non-audit services, including:			x	CCDOR Audit Com
Bookkeeping or other services related to the accounting records or financial statements of the Food Bank of the Southern Tier;				
Financial information systems design and implementation;				
Appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinions, or contribution-in-kind reports;				
Actuarial services;				
Internal audit outsourcing services;				
Management functions or human resources;				
Broker or dealer, investment adviser, or investment banking services;				
Legal services and expert services unrelated to the audit; and				
Any services that the Board determines, is impermissible.				
D. Whistle Blower Policy				
1. The Audit Committee shall oversee and the Food Bank of the Southern Tier management shall establish a procedure for the:				CCDOR Compliance
a. Receipt, retention, and treatment of complaints regarding accounting, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters.			x	CCDOR Compliance
b. Confidential, anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.			x	CCDOR Compliance
c. Substantive complaints will be reported to the Committee on an on-going basis.			x	CCDOR Compliance
d. The Committee shall evaluate the effectiveness of the procedure on an annual		x		CCDOR Compliance
2. Ensure annual training on the policy.		x		Nom Com?

E. Conflict of Interest & Confidentiality				
1. Oversee the Food Bank's policy on conflicts of interest & confidentiality.				CCDOR Compliance
a. Review conflict of interest & confidentiality agreements & revise if needed		x		CCDOR Compliance
b. Ensure the annual execution of BOD & Committee Members' conflict of interest & confidentiality agreements		x		CCDOR Compliance
c. Review compilation of potential conflicts of interest among BOD & Committee Members and make recommendations if needed	x			Nom Com?
E. Risk Assessment				
1. The Committee shall review with Food Bank of the Southern Tier management the Food Bank of the Southern Tier's major risk exposures and the steps management has taken to monitor and control such exposure.			x	CCDOR Compliance
2. The Committee shall identify high risk areas to be presented to the Board on an annual basis.			x	Nom Com?
3. Review critical policies & procedures training plan annually with FBST staff.		x		CCDOR Compliance
F. Independence/Financial Expertise				
1. As part of a private session of the Committee, members shall make a full disclosure of all business and financial interests that could affect the ability to serve as a Committee member.	x	x	x	???
2. The Committee shall include in each meeting agenda an opportunity for Committee members to discuss new relationships.	x	x	x	???
3. The minutes of the meetings shall reflect new members and indicate any changes in status and that financial expertise is present on the committee.	x	x	x	???
G. Other Matters				
1. The Committee shall hold education sessions for members on relevant topics.			x	???
2. The Audit Committee shall provide an opportunity at each meeting to go into executive session without Food Bank management present.	x	x	x	All Committees
3. The Audit Committee shall provide an opportunity at least annually for the evaluation of its work.		x		All Committees
4. The Committee shall review its committee description and tracking annually and revise as needed		x		All Committees
Source: College & University Best Practices --				
Approved: Jan 07 -- Revised: June 06, Sept 06, Jan 07, Nov 10, Feb 11, Dec 11, Nov 13, May 14, Oct 18				

FOOD BANK OF THE SOUTHERN TIER

Finance Committee

Critical Task List Tracking Calendar

Task	Feb	May	Aug	Nov	Dec	As Needed
Oversees preparation of annual budget and makes recommendation to BOD for approval				X	X	
Monitors and makes recommendations regarding capital projects, significant spending outside the approved budget and activities affecting the assets of the Food Bank (land sales, building, etc.). Reports out to BOD						X
Review FBST investment strategy and report to BOD	X					
Reviews and monitors committee tracking calendar. Makes changes as necessary				X		
Reviews and ensures that all appropriate federal, state & local regulations are adhered to.						X
Conducts insurance review (?)						X
Review monthly fiscal reports including income/expense statements, balance sheet, cash flow and other related reports. Reports out to BOD	X	X	X	X	X	
Reviews and approves quarterly projections		X	X	X		
Review Communis fund performance	X	X	X	X		
Provides signatures as necessary for checks over \$5,000 (non-food) per policy.						X
Approved: Jul 06 --- Revised: Aug 2012, Dec 2013, Aug 2015						

Catholic Charities
Diocese of Rochester

compliance guiding the path
of your workday

Roman Catholic Diocese of Rochester

Pastoral Center

1150 Buffalo Road

Rochester, New York 14624

Hotline (844) 440-0093

Corporate Compliance Plan
August 1, 2018

Approved:

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Name

- I. Corporate Compliance Policy
 - Code of Conduct
- II. Governance & Oversight
 - A. The Role of the Compliance Officer
 - B. The Structure, Duties & Role of the Compliance Committee
 - C. Delegation of Substantial Discretionary Authority
- III. Education & Training
- IV. Effective Confidential Communication
- V. Enforcement of Compliance Standards
- VI. Auditing & Monitoring
- VII. Detection & Response
- VIII. Whistleblower Provisions & Protections
- IX. Appendices
 - A. Glossary of Terminology
 - B. Healthcare Laws & Regulations
 - C. Regional Compliance Officer & Executive Director Information

Corporate Compliance Policy

I. Policy

It is the policy of Catholic Charities of the Diocese of Rochester (“Catholic Charities”, “CCDR” or “the Corporation”) to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations, and payer requirements. It is also Catholic Charities’ policy to adhere to the Code of Ethics/Conduct that is adopted by the CCDR Board of Directors, the Diocesan Director and the Audit & Compliance Committee. To support this commitment, Catholic Charities will maintain this Corporate Compliance Plan to provide an organizational framework for the corporation’s compliance and ethics activities.

II. Commitment

We are dedicated to our responsibility to conduct our business affairs with integrity, based on sound ethical and moral standards. Our compliance efforts are designed to support a culture within CCDR that promotes prevention, detection and resolution of instances of conduct that do not conform to federal and state laws and regulations and payer requirements, as well as CCDR ethical and business policies.

We remain committed to our responsibility to conduct our business affairs with integrity based on sound ethical and moral standards. We will hold all affected individuals to these same standards.

CCDR is committed to maintaining and measuring the effectiveness of our compliance policies and standards through monitoring and auditing systems reasonably designed to detect noncompliance by all affected individuals. We shall require the performance of regular, periodic compliance audits by internal and/or external auditors who have expertise in federal and state health care statutes, regulations and health care program requirements.

The Chief Compliance Officer shall monitor the compliance plan’s enforcement and report regularly to the Audit & Compliance Committee. Audits will be designed to ensure compliance with CCDR’s Plan, related policies and procedures, and all relevant federal and state laws and will be conducted by the Compliance & Ethics Office.

III. Responsibility

The success of the compliance program depends on the efforts of each of CCDR’s affected individuals. All affected individuals shall acknowledge that it is their responsibility to report any suspected instances of suspected or known noncompliance. The corporation fully expects that all affected individuals will promptly report their concerns to any or all of the following: their immediate supervisor, Regional Compliance Officer, Executive Director, the Chief Compliance Officer or the Diocesan Director. Reports may be made confidentially and/or anonymously without fear of intimidation, retaliation or retribution to the Compliance & Ethics Office through the Complytrack portal or by using the Integrity Hotline (888-440-0093). Failure to report noncompliance or making bad faith reports will be grounds for disciplinary action, up to and including termination. Reports related to harassment or other workplace-oriented issues may be referred to Human Resources for investigation as appropriate.

IV. Policies & Procedures

CCDR will communicate its compliance standards and policies through required training initiatives to all affected individuals where they serve in a capacity where training would be required by federal and state law and regulation. We are committed to these efforts through distribution of this compliance plan and our Code of Ethics/Conduct and the provision of training.

The Plan will be reviewed annually, prior to certifying compliance in accordance with 18 NYCRR §521.3 and, where applicable, the Federal Deficit Reduction Act of 2005 (“DRA”), to ensure its effectiveness, accuracy and relevance. The Chief Compliance Officer will ensure that these written policies and procedures are updated when

the law, regulations or standards change, or when events warrant a revision to this plan and related policies and procedures.

All affected individuals are able to readily access this plan, the Code of Ethics/Conduct via CCDR's website and the websites of our regional agencies, the CCDR Compliance SharePoint site and the Catholic Family Center shared drive.

V. Enforcement

This compliance plan will be consistently enforced through appropriate disciplinary mechanisms including, if appropriate, discipline of individuals responsible for failure to detect and/or report noncompliance.

VI. Catholic Charities' Response

Detected noncompliance, through any mechanism (i.e., compliance auditing procedures and/or confidential reporting), will be responded to in an expedient manner. We are dedicated to the resolution of such matters and will take all reasonable steps to prevent further similar violations, including any necessary modifications to the Compliance Plan.

VII. Due Diligence

Catholic Charities will, at all times, exercise due diligence with regard to background checks and professional license/credential verifications as appropriate for all prospective affected individuals.

Catholic Charities is committed to maintaining high quality care and service as well as integrity in its financial and business operations. Therefore, CCDR will conduct appropriate screening of all affected individuals to ensure that they have not been sanctioned or excluded by federal or state governmental agencies.

VIII. Whistleblower Provisions & Protections

CCDR will not tolerate any retaliation, intimidation and/or retribution against an affected individual if the affected individual discloses certain information about our policies, practices or activities to a regulatory, law enforcement or other similar agency or public official. Protected disclosures are those that assert that the corporation is in violation of a law that creates a substantial and specific danger to the public health and safety or which constitutes health care fraud under the law or asserts that, in good faith, the employee believes constitute improper quality of client care.

Code of Ethics & Mission

I. Mission

Motivated by the Gospel message of Jesus Christ and Catholic social teaching, our mission is to build a just and compassionate society rooted in the dignity of all people through education, advocacy and the provision of human services.

II. Expectations

We ensure that all aspects of client services and business conduct are performed in compliance with our mission/vision statement, policies and procedures, professional standards, applicable governmental laws, rules, and regulations, and other payer standards. CCDR expects every person who provides services to our consumers to adhere to the highest ethical standards and to promote ethical behavior. Any person whose behavior is found to violate ethical standards will be disciplined appropriately.

All affected individuals may not engage in any conduct that conflicts – or is perceived to conflict – with the best interest of Catholic Charities. Employees, Agents, Other Representatives and Board Members must disclose any circumstances where the employee or his or her immediate family member is an employee, consultant, owner, contractor, or investor in any entity that (i) engages in any business or maintains any relationship with the corporation; (ii) provides to, or receives from, CCDR any referrals; or (iii) competes with Catholic Charities. Employees, Agents, Other Representatives and Board members may not without permission of the Compliance Office accept, solicit or offer anything of value from anyone doing business with CCDR. Business dealings with outside entities should not result in unusual gain for affected individuals and/or their families.

All affected individuals are expected to maintain complete, accurate, and contemporaneous records as required by Catholic Charities. The term “records” includes all documents, both written and electronic, that relate to the provision of CCDR services or provide support for the billing of Catholic Charities services. Records must reflect the actual service provided.

Records should never be altered in a significant or material way without permission of the Compliance & Ethics Office. In the case of a necessary alteration, the alteration should be signed and dated by the staff member altering the document. Any records to be appropriately altered must reflect the date of the alteration, the name, signature, and title of the person altering the document, and the reason for the alteration, if not apparent.

Signatures, including those captured in the electronic health records, should always be accompanied by the date that the signature was made. Dates in all cases should include the month, date and year. Documents must never be backdated or predated. Under no circumstances shall any person ever sign the name of another person to any document. Signature stamps and correction fluid (i.e., White Out) shall not be used on any records. Backdating and predating documents is unacceptable and will lead to discipline up to and including termination.

When any person knows or reasonably suspects that these expectations above have not been met, this must be reported to the Compliance & Ethics Office (through any of the methods described in Section I–III above) so each situation may be appropriately dealt with.

Governance & Oversight

I. The Role of the Chief Compliance Officer

Appointment

The Corporate Board of Directors of Catholic Charities has designated a Chief Compliance Officer with expertise in healthcare regulatory compliance who is directly obligated to serve the best interests of our clients, employees and Board of Directors and has granted the authority to carry out the function of the position.

The Chief Compliance Officer serves as the authority on compliance matters and is part of the executive management team. The Chief Compliance Officer is not subordinate to legal counsel, Risk Management, Human Resources, Information Technology, Finance and/or any other function.

Reporting Structure & Authority

The Chief Compliance Officer reports directly to the Catholic Charities Diocesan Director. The Chief Compliance Officer has direct lines of communication to regional Executive Directors, regional Board Chairpersons, the Diocesan Director, Catholic Charities Audit & Compliance Committee, the Catholic Charities Board of Directors, the Bishop and/or counsel, as appropriate and necessary.

Regional Compliance Officer

Each Catholic Charities regional agency has a designated Regional Compliance Officer, based upon regulatory requirements and/or necessity, who works closely with the Regional Executive Director and Regional Boards of Directors to administer the Compliance Plan within the region.

Duties & Responsibilities

The Chief Compliance Officer is directly obligated to serve the best interests of the corporation, its Board of Directors, subsidiaries, clients and employees. Responsibilities of the Chief Compliance Officer include, but are not limited to:

1. Oversight and monitoring the implementation of a compliance program that effectively prevents and/or detects violation of law, regulations and/or corporate policies and sets forth the highest ethical principles;
2. Development and implementation of compliance policies and procedures;
3. Directing internal audits established to monitor effectiveness of compliance standards;
4. Providing guidance to management, medical/clinical program personnel, and individual departments regarding policies and procedures, and governmental laws, rules and regulations;
5. Updating, periodically, the Compliance Plan as changes occur within Catholic Charities, within the law and regulations, or governmental and third party payers;
6. Overseeing efforts to communicate awareness of the existence and contents of the compliance plan;
7. Coordinating, developing and participating in the educational and training program;
8. Ensuring all affected individuals are aware of the requirements of the Catholic Charities Compliance Plan;
9. Actively seeking up-to-date material and releases regarding regulatory compliance;
10. Maintaining a retaliation-free reporting system (hotline) and responding to concerns, complaints and questions related to the compliance plan;
11. Acting as a resource for Regional Compliance Officers, regional Boards of Directors, the Corporate Board of Directors and staff;
12. Investigating and acting on issues related to compliance, including coordination with outside legal counsel, conducting or authorizing and overseeing investigations of matters that merit investigation under the compliance program;

13. Overseeing internal investigations and implementing corrective action;
14. Facilitate ongoing Governance Compliance Committee meetings; and
15. Create a summary report of Diocesan wide compliance activities, investigations and reviews, and report annually, or as needed, to the Board of Directors.
16. Assist in the event of a government audit.

It is not expected that the Chief Compliance Officer will have the knowledge or expertise necessary to ensure compliance with all laws and regulations that affect the various departments of CCDR. He/she is responsible, however, for the overall program and must ensure that qualified, knowledgeable personnel within individual programs or functions of the corporation assist in monitoring and educational functions. It is also his/her responsibility to ensure programs are in place to guarantee that significant discretionary authority is not delegated to persons with a demonstrated or suspected propensity for improper or unlawful conduct.

The Chief Compliance Officer reports on the fulfillment of compliance goals to the Corporate Compliance Committee at least quarterly and to the Board of Directors at least annually. The report includes but is not limited to:

1. The level of compliance or non-compliance found as a result of monitoring and auditing;
2. The success of efforts to improve compliance, including training and education;
3. The non-delegation of discretionary authority to those with the propensity to act improperly; and
4. Corrective or disciplinary action taken with respect to those found to be non-compliant.

III. The Structure, Duties & and Role of the Compliance Committee

Catholic Charities is committed to the operation of an effective compliance program. Therefore, we have established a two prong approach to monitor results of the compliance function and determine the corporation's strategy for promoting compliance and ethics at the enterprise level. Additionally, in an effort to enhance effectiveness, individual agencies may have their own regional compliance committee, which reports results to the regional Board of Directors and Corporate Compliance Committee.

Oversight

The Audit & Compliance Committee of the Board of Directors provides executive oversight of the Chief Compliance Officer and the operation of the centralized compliance program and ensures direct lines of communication to the CCDR Board of Directors. The purpose of the Corporate Compliance Committee is to advise and assist the Chief Compliance Officer with oversight and execution of the Compliance Plan.

Reporting Structure & Purpose

A. Audit & Compliance Committee

Audit & Compliance Committee members are appointed by the Diocesan Director and the CCDR Board Chairperson and approved by the Board of Directors. The Chief Compliance Officer reports on issue and progress in demonstrating compliance program effectiveness at each Audit & Compliance Committee meeting. Compliance issues are reported by the Audit & Compliance Committee to the CCDR Board of Directors, where appropriate.

Minutes will be recorded and provided to the CCDR Board of Directors. The Chief Compliance Officer will maintain the minutes of all meetings.

B. Corporate Compliance Committee

The Corporate Compliance Committee is appointed by the Chief Compliance Officer and Diocesan Director to advise and assist the Chief Compliance Officer with the implementation of the Compliance Plan. The Corporate Compliance Committee is chaired by the Chief Compliance Officer and reports to the Audit & Compliance Committee of the CCDR Board of Directors. Membership is comprised of the Chief Compliance Officer, Privacy Officer, Information Security Officer, all Regional Compliance Officers, the President & CEO of Catholic Family Center, the Executive Director of Catholic Charities Community Services, the Diocesan Director (or designee) and a member of the Board of Directors. Other members may be invited on an ad hoc basis.

The Corporate Compliance Committee will meet on a routine quarterly basis. Additional meetings may be called any time pertinent issues arise.

Responsibilities

The purpose of the Corporate Compliance Committee is to advise and assist the Chief Compliance Officer with the execution of an effective compliance program. The Committee assists with, and makes recommendations for, the development of policies which are approved by the Diocesan Director (or designee). The Corporate Compliance Committee is responsible for the following:

1. Ongoing analysis of the environment in which Catholic Charities conducts its operations, including legal requirements with which it must comply.
2. Ongoing review, modification, and creation, where necessary, of policies and procedures which address areas of risk, and which respond to new or changes in legislation and other mandates.
3. Monitoring internal systems and controls to enforce compliance standards, policies, and procedures.
4. Monitoring internal and external audits to identify and address potential non-compliance issues.
5. Review corrective and preventive action plans.
6. Participating in processes designed to solicit, evaluate, and respond to compliance complaints and issues.
7. Assess the effectiveness of the Corporate Compliance Program, corporate policies and other special areas.
8. Assess the effectiveness of the internal control systems over operations. Financial matters will be under the authority of the CCDR Finance Committee and the CCDR Audit Committee.
9. Make recommendations to the Board on matters related to the systems of internal controls, including management's compliance with applicable corporate policies and procedures and business risk management.
10. Oversee the adoption, implementation of, and compliance with any conflict of interest policy or whistleblower policy adopted by the corporation.
11. Ensure that there is an appropriate confidential channel for Board Members, non-board members serving on committees of the Corporation, employees, donors and clients to express concerns about misconduct or questionable practices in the organization.
12. Oversee the governance of the Corporate Compliance program, including review and approval of all necessary Corporate Compliance policies on behalf of the Audit & Compliance Committee and the full Board.
13. Report on the Corporate Compliance Committee activities to the Board and provide a full report to the Board annually.
14. Ensure that CCDR has sufficient internal controls over its operations, including oversight of matters related to data security and privacy.
15. Keep accurate minutes of its meetings including a record of the activities, business transactions and attendees.

IV. Delegation of Substantial Discretionary Authority

I. Requirement

Any affected individual who holds, or intends to hold, a position with substantial discretionary authority for the corporation is required to disclose any name changes and any involvement in non-compliant activities, including health care related crimes. In addition, CCDR may perform reasonable inquiries into the background of applicants and all affected individuals. The following organizations may be queried:

- a) General Services Administration (GSA): System for Award Management: Excluded Parties;
- b) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Office of Inspector General (OIG) List of Excluded Individuals/Entities (LEIE);
- c) Office of Inspector General, Most Wanted Fugitives;
- d) Office of Foreign Assets Control, Specifically Designated Nationals;
- e) NYS Office of General Services (“OGS”) Prohibited Entities List;
- f) New York Office of Medicaid Inspector General (OMIG) Medicaid Exclusion List;
- g) New York Department of Health Office of Professional Medical Conduct Physician & Physician Assistant’s Disciplinary & Other Actions (NY OPMC);
- h) New York State Education Department’s Office of Professions Professional Misconduct Enforcement Actions;
- i) New York State Office of Professions;
- j) New York State Office of Alcohol & Substance Abuse CASAC verification;

Education and Training

I. Expectations

Education and training are critical elements of the compliance & ethics program. Every affected individual is expected to be familiar with and knowledgeable about the corporation's compliance plan and have a solid working knowledge of his or her responsibilities under the plan. Compliance policies and standards will be communicated to all affected individuals through required participation in training programs, which are geared toward their involvement with the corporation.

Training may be conducted by subject matter experts, who may include legal counsel, the Chief Compliance Officer or designee and/or outside consultants as needed.

Those who fail to attend required compliance training will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. This is expected to be managed at the individual agency level to determine, on a case by case basis, the future of the relationships with all affected individuals who do not attend required compliance trainings. Regional Compliance Officers are responsible to audit for appropriate and consistent disciplinary action.

Training materials will also be made available upon request to the Compliance Department and will include information identifying the Chief Compliance Officer, his/her contact information and confidential and anonymous methods to report.

II. Training Topics - General

All affected individuals shall participate in training, including but not limited to the topics identified below:

- Compliance issues
 - Guidance on dealing with compliance issues;
 - How to communicate compliance issues to appropriate compliance personnel;
 - Guidance on how potential compliance problems are investigated and resolved;
- Compliance expectations
 - Acting in ways that support integrity in operations;
 - Duty to report misconduct and how to report suspected non-compliance.
 - An overview of the False Claims Acts and payer requirements;
 - Disciplinary policies.
- Compliance program operation
 - Legal principles regarding compliance and Board responsibilities related thereto;
 - An overview of the Plan, including one's obligation to adhere to the Plan;

III. Training Topics - Targeted

In addition to the above, targeted training will be provided to all affected individuals whose job responsibilities include activities related to compliance topics. The Compliance & Ethics Office will identify areas requiring training with particular focus on billing, payments, medical necessity and quality of care, governance, mandatory reporting and credentialing. Managers shall assist the Compliance & Ethics Office in identifying areas that require specific training and are responsible for communication of the terms of the compliance plan to all independent contractors doing business with the corporation. If a problem has been identified as a result of ongoing monitoring, the Compliance & Ethics Office will notify and train the associated representatives in the identified risk areas.

Department in-service training on compliance-related matters will be documented and maintained. As a routine matter, the Compliance & Ethics Office will ensure that periodic internal audits of adherence to this standard are completed and reported to the Corporate Compliance Committee.

IV. Orientation

As part of their orientation, each affected individual shall receive information on how to access the Compliance Plan, policies and specific standards of conduct that affect their role and that it is their responsibility to read and be familiar with said Plan.

V. Attendance

All education and training relating to the Compliance Plan will be verified by attendance for live trainings and a signed acknowledgement of receipt of the Compliance Plan and standards. On-line and/or virtual trainings will be recorded in Pathfinder and/or Complytrack via electronic signature of the attendee. Department Directors are responsible to record in-service training, provided.

Completion of compliance training is mandatory and is a condition of continued employment or, where required, other association with CCDD.

Effective Confidential Communication

I. Expectations

Open lines of communication between the Compliance & Ethics Office and all affected individuals are essential to the success of our Compliance & Ethics program. Every affected individual has an obligation and the corporation expects that they refuse to participate in any wrongful course of action and to report the actions according to the procedure listed below.

II. Reporting Procedure

If an affected individual witnesses, learns of, or is asked to participate in any activities that are potentially in violation of this Compliance Plan, he/she should contact any or all of the following: the Compliance & Ethics Office, his/her immediate supervisor the Executive Director or the Diocesan Director.

Reports may be made in person or by calling the Integrity Hotline, a telephone line dedicated for the purpose of receiving such notification at (844) 440-0093 or reporting it through the Compliance Inquiry & Reporting form in Complytrack. Both the Integrity Hotline and the Complytrack portal are both anonymous and confidential reporting methods.

Upon receipt of a question or concern, any supervisor, officer, or director shall document the issue at hand and report to the Compliance & Ethics Office. Any questions or concerns relating to potential non-compliance by the Chief Compliance Officer should be reported immediately to any or all of the following: the Diocesan Director, the Audit & Compliance Committee Chairperson and or the CCDR Board of Directors Chairperson. Questions or concerns relating to potential non-compliance by the CEO or Executive Director of any member agency must immediately be reported to any or all of the following: the Chief Compliance Officer, any member of the Audit & Compliance Committee or Board of Directors.

The Compliance & Ethics Office or designee shall record the information necessary to conduct an appropriate investigation of all complaints. If the complainant was seeking information concerning the Code of Ethics/Conduct or its application, the Compliance & Ethics Office staff member shall record the facts of the call and the nature of the information sought and respond as appropriate.

The Compliance & Ethics Office shall protect the anonymity of the affected individual who reports any complaint or question.

The Compliance & Ethics Office may, at any time, contact legal counsel for advice, counsel, assistance and/or support.

III. Protections

In the event an anonymous report is received, no attempt will be made to identify the reporter(s). The identity of reporters will be safeguarded to the fullest extent possible and will be protected against intimidation, retaliation and/or retribution, or any other form of reprisal. Any threat of reprisal against a person who acts in good faith pursuant to his or her responsibilities under the Plan is acting against the corporation's compliance policy. Discipline, up to and including termination of employment, will result if such reprisal is proven.

IV. Guidance

Any affected individual may seek guidance with respect to the Compliance Plan or Code of Ethics/Conduct at any time by following the reporting mechanisms outlined above.

Enforcement of Compliance Standards

I. Background Investigations

For all affected individuals who have authority to make decisions or perform job-related responsibilities that have the potential to create compliance issues, the corporation will conduct a reasonable and prudent background investigation, including exclusion checks and professional licensure verification. It is CCDR's policy not to employ, or do business with, individuals or entities that have been sanctioned from participation in federal, or state, sponsored healthcare programs by a federal or state law enforcement, regulatory or licensing agency or who may not have the credentials required for their position.

II. Disciplinary Action - General

Affected individuals who fail to comply with the corporation's compliance plan and standards, or who have engaged in conduct that has the potential of impairing CCDR's status as a reliable, honest, and trustworthy service provider, will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination of their relationship with Catholic Charities. Any affected individual found to have known of such acts but who failed to report them will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination of their relationship with CCDR.

Any discipline will be appropriately documented in the affected individual's file and the Enforcement of Standards log in Complytrack, along with a written statement of reason(s) for imposing such discipline. The Compliance & Ethics Office shall maintain a record of all disciplinary actions involving the Compliance Plan. As stated earlier in this Plan, any action or behavior that is not in conformity with the Compliance Plan, stated or intended standards, guidelines or procedures or that is a violation of any federal or state law or regulation will be deemed a violation of the Plan and will result in disciplinary action.

III. Performance Evaluation - Supervisory

CCDR's Compliance Program requires that the promotion of, and adherence to, the elements of the Compliance Program be a factor in evaluating the performance of all affected individuals. They will be periodically trained in new compliance policies and procedures. In addition, all managers and supervisors will:

- a. Be responsible for promoting awareness and promptly communicating to their staff all changes to CCDR's compliance policies and procedures, as well as any regulatory requirements which are applicable to their role.
- b. Discuss with all supervised employees the compliance policies and legal requirements applicable to their function.
- c. Inform all supervised personnel that strict compliance with these policies and requirements is a condition of employment.
- d. Disclose to staff the consequences of violating the Plan and that the corporation will take disciplinary action up to and including termination or revocation of privileges for violation of these policies and requirements.

IV. Disciplinary Action - Supervisory

Managers and supervisors will be sanctioned for failure to adequately instruct their subordinates or failure to detect noncompliance with applicable policies and legal requirements where reasonable diligence on the part of the manager or supervisor would have led to the earlier discovery of any problems or violations and would have provided the corporation with the opportunity to correct them. In the event that a report is made to a director, manager, supervisor or acting supervisor and that responsible party fails to act upon the report, the responsible party is subject to corrective or disciplinary action.

Auditing and Monitoring of Compliance Activities

I. Internal Audits

Ongoing evaluation is critical in detecting non-compliance and will help ensure the success of CCDR's Compliance Program. An ongoing auditing and monitoring system, implemented by the Compliance & Ethics Office and in consultation with the Corporate Compliance Committee, is an integral component of our auditing and monitoring systems. This ongoing evaluation shall include the following:

- Review of relationships with third-party contractors, specifically those with substantive exposure to government enforcement actions (e.g., excluded or sanctioned individuals);
- Compliance audits of compliance policies and standards; and
- Review of documentation and billing relating to claims made to federal, state, and private payers for reimbursement, performed internally or by an external consultant as determined by CO and CC.
- Assessment of risk levels within departments.
- Audit of internal controls and review of external audits.
- Effectiveness of required Corrective Actions Plans in meeting standards.

The audits and reviews will examine the corporation's compliance with specific rules and policies through on-site visits, personnel interviews, general questionnaires, and consumer record documentation reviews.

Audit findings will be reported to the Compliance Committee on a quarterly basis, unless there is reason to report findings upon the completion of an audit. The Compliance Committee will include audit findings in its report to the Board of Directors. Audit reports shall be made available to the Chief Compliance Officer, the Diocesan Director, the Corporate, Audit & Compliance Committee and the CCDR Board of Directors, as such information is requested.

If the Compliance & Ethics Office discovers that a department's or individual's level of compliance is unacceptable, the Compliance & Ethics Office may impose a plan of corrective action, which may include future monitoring of an individual or department on a more frequent basis. Any corrective actions necessary will be made and follow-up will be conducted to ensure the corrective measures were implemented and the situation was remedied. Corrective, focused training may also be implemented at that time.

II. Plan Integrity

Additional expectations are as follows:

- The Compliance & Ethics Office will be notified immediately in the event of any non-routine visits, audits, investigations, or surveys by any federal or state agency or authority, and shall immediately receive a photocopy of any correspondence from any regulatory agency charged with licensing and/or administering a federally or state-funded program or County-funded program with which the corporation participates.
- Establishment of a process detailing ongoing notification by the Compliance & Ethics Office to all affected individuals of any changes in laws, regulations, or policies, as well as appropriate training to assure continuous compliance.

Detection & Response

I. Violation Detection

The Chief Compliance Officer or designee and the Corporate Compliance Committee shall determine whether there is any basis to suspect that a violation of the compliance program has occurred.

If, as a result of any audit, report, observation, or by any other means, it is determined that a violation *may have* occurred, the matter may be referred to legal counsel who, with the assistance of the Compliance & Ethics Office, shall conduct a more detailed investigation. This investigation may include, but is not limited to, the following:

- Interviews with individuals having knowledge of the facts alleged;
- A review of documents; and
- Legal research and contact with governmental agencies for the purpose of clarification.
If advice is sought from a governmental agency, the request and any written or oral response shall be fully documented.

All affected individuals must cooperate with those investigating such matters and non-cooperation may result in disciplinary action. The Chief Compliance Officer or their designee has full authority to interview and/or review any information (subject to state and federal laws on patient confidentiality) he/she deems necessary to complete the investigation.

If the integrity of the investigation may be negatively impacted because of the presence of the affected individual under investigation, the affected individual or other individuals allegedly involved in the misconduct can be removed from his/her current work activity or position at CCDR until the investigation is complete. In addition, the Compliance & Ethics Office will take precautionary steps to prevent the destruction of documents or other evidence relevant to the investigation, as well as to preserve the integrity of that evidence. The Compliance & Ethics Office may recommend a course of discipline and/or other corrective action. Once an investigation is completed, if disciplinary action is warranted, it will be immediate, where appropriate. The Chief Compliance Officer will report the results of each investigation to the Corporate Compliance Committee.

If it is determined that a violation has occurred, the Chief Compliance Officer, will determine what steps must be taken to rectify the problem, such steps which may include repayment of claims to the appropriate payer, notification of regulatory and/or prosecutorial authorities, self-disclosure (with best efforts to do so within 60 days of identification), discipline, training or retraining, the revision of the Plan or creation of additional policies and procedures.

II. Reporting

The Chief Compliance Officer shall report to the Corporate Compliance Committee regarding each investigation conducted. Results may also be shared in detail, or at a high level with the Audit & Compliance Committee of the CCDR Board of Directors. At the conclusion of an investigation involving legal counsel, he/she shall issue a report to the Chief Compliance Officer and Corporate Compliance Committee summarizing his/her findings, conclusions, and recommendations and will render an opinion as to whether a violation of the law has occurred.

The report may be reviewed with legal counsel in attendance. Any additional action may be on the advice of counsel.

Reports may be shared with other members of the relevant leadership team, as it is deemed appropriate.

III. Rectification

If the corporation identifies that an overpayment was received from any third party payer, the appropriate regulatory (funder) and/or prosecutorial (attorney general/police) authority will be appropriately notified with the advice and assistance of counsel. It is our policy to not retain any funds which are received as a result of overpayments. In instances where it appears an affirmative fraud may have occurred, appropriate amounts shall be returned after consultation and approval by involved regulatory and/or prosecutorial authorities. Systems shall also be put in place to prevent such overpayments in the future.

IV. Record Keeping

Regardless of whether a report is made to a governmental agency, the Compliance & Ethics Office shall maintain a record of the investigation, including copies of all pertinent documentation. This record will be considered confidential and privileged and will not be released without the approval of the Chief Compliance Officer or legal counsel.

V. Record Retention

One of the primary purposes of maintaining and retaining records is to demonstrate that CCDR provides medically and programmatically appropriate services to its participants. Further, appropriate and complete documentation provides the basis on which reimbursement is sought from third party payers. Maintaining appropriate documentation is vital to the corporation's continued success. Thus, all affected individuals have an obligation to maintain accurate and complete records.

It is CCDR's policy to comply with at least the minimum standard required by Federal and State laws and regulations. CCDR's affected individuals are also expected to maintain complete, accurate and contemporaneous records as required by the corporation and payers. The term "records" includes all documents, both written and electronic, that relate to the provision of services or that provide support for billing services to all payers. Records must reflect the actual service provided.

Records will be retained and disposed pursuant to the rules of the regulator, funders and the New York State federal and state codes, rules and regulations. Records will be kept, at least, ten (10) years after the last contact (minor records will be kept longer pursuant to CCDR policy and law). Referral information on those not accepted into service will be kept for at least three years.

Whistleblower Provisions and Protections

I. Provisions

The False Claims Act provides protection to qui tam relators who are discharged, demoted, suspended, threatened, harassed, or in any other manner discriminated against in the terms and conditions of their employment as a result of their furtherance of an action under the False Claims Act.

CCDR will not take any action deemed to be adverse, retaliatory, intimidating and/or retribution against an employee if the employee discloses information about its policies, practices or activities to a regulatory, law enforcement or other similar agency or public official. Protected disclosures are those that assert that the corporation is in violation of a law that creates a substantial and specific danger to the public health and safety or which constitutes health care fraud under the law or that assert that, in good faith, the employee believes constitute improper quality of patient care.

Any individual who is found to have harassed, intimidated or to have taken any adverse action against an individual who submitted a good faith report, participated in an investigation or assisted with remedial action may be subject to discipline, including immediate discharge. However, an individual who submits a report that lacks a good faith basis for the sole purpose of hurting an associated individual may also be subject to discipline and/or immediate termination.

II. Protections

The employee's disclosure is protected only if the employee first brought up the matter internally and gave the employer a reasonable opportunity to correct the alleged violation, unless the danger is imminent to the public or client and the employee believes in good faith that reporting to a supervisor would not result in corrective action.

CCDR will protect qui tam relators with remedies that include reinstatement with comparable seniority as the qui tam relator would have had but for the discrimination, two times the amount of any back pay, interest on any back pay, and compensation for any special damages sustained as a result of the discrimination, including litigation costs and reasonable attorneys' fees.

If the corporation takes any intimidating and/or retaliatory action against the qui tam relator (employee), the employee may sue in state court for reinstatement to the same, or an equivalent position, any lost back wages and benefits and attorneys' fees.

Appendix A: Glossary of Terminology

- **Abuse:** Actions that do not involve intentional misrepresentations of fact, but nevertheless are inconsistent with sound financial, business, or healthcare practices and create significant risk to the integrity of the organization such as 1) unnecessary cost to the programs, 2) reimbursement for services that are not medically necessary, or 3) reimbursement for services that fail to meet professionally recognized standards of care.
- **Affected Individuals:** Those individuals affected by the Catholic Charities compliance and ethics program. This includes all employees, appointees, executives, governing body members, and/or any person or affiliate who is involved in any way with Catholic Charities such that the person or affiliate contributes to CCDR's entitlement to payment of government funds and who is not an employee, executive or governing body member (e.g., Interns, Agents, Other Representatives).
- **Agent:** Any person or business (e.g., contractors, subcontractors, etc.) which or who, authorized on behalf of CCDR, furnishes, or otherwise authorizes the furnishing of health care items or services, performs billing or coding functions, or is involved in monitoring of health care provided by CCDR.
- **Anti-kickback statute:** the federal statute, as it relates to healthcare, which prohibits anyone from knowingly and willfully soliciting, receiving, offering, or paying any remuneration directly or indirectly, in cash or in kind, in exchange for services or purchases for which payment may be made by Medicare and/or Medicaid.
- **Bad Faith Report:** Making a report that violates the standards or honesty in dealing with others; intent to deceive.
- **Board of Directors:** The Catholic Charities governing body, comprised of Directors, which maintains a control function that is above the Executive Level of the corporation.
- **Business Courtesies:** include items of value given to another free of cost (e.g.-gifts, entertainment, and/or CCDR sponsored or hosted social events).
- **Chief Compliance Officer:** The employee vested with responsibility for the development, creation and oversight of the enterprise compliance program, annual compliance plans and the compliance related responsibilities of the Regional Compliance Officers.
- **Claim:** As used in the New York State False Claims Act, "claim" means any request or demand, whether under a contract or otherwise, for money or property which is made to any employee, officer or agent of the state or of a local government, or to any contractor or grantee, or other recipient, if the state or a local government provides any portion of the money or property which is requested or demanded or will reimburse such contractor, grantee or other recipient for any portion of the money or property which is requested or demanded.
- **Coding:** the process of utilizing a medical classification system to assign a numeric code to diagnostic and procedural data.
- **Compliance Plan:** a collection of policies, including this plan, this plan which establishes the standards of conduct for CCDR designed to promote honest and ethical behavior, as well as providing CCDR's structure for educating and communicating those standards to employees, with the overall objective to prevent, detect and report significant non-compliance.
- **Conflict of Interest:** Any situation in which financial or other personal considerations may compromise or appear to compromise (1) an employee or Board member's business judgment; (2) delivery of services; or (3) ability for an employee to do his or her job. An actual or potential conflict of interest occurs when an employee or Board member is in a position to influence a decision that may result in a personal gain for that employee, Board member, or for a relative as a result of business dealings. For the purpose of this policy, a relative is any person who is related by blood or marriage, or whose relationship with the employee is similar to that of persons who are related by blood or marriage.
- **Corporate Compliance Committee:** An internal committee, chaired by the Chief Compliance Officer, selected to oversee and execute on the Compliance Plan for their designated region. Membership is designated by the Chief Compliance Officer and the Diocesan Director.
- **Executive:** any member of senior management staff, regardless of specific title.
- **False Claim:** False claim means any claim, which is either in all or in part, false or fraudulent.
- **Federal Program:** Medicare, Medicaid, and any other programs funded by the Federal government.
- **Fraud:** intentional misrepresentation designed to induce reliance by another person to obtain an unauthorized benefit.
- **Immediate Family Member:** is a spouse, natural or adoptive parent, child or sibling. For the purposes of this Compliance Plan, immediate family members are also considered to be step-parents, step-children and step-siblings, in-laws (i.e.-father, mother, son, daughter, brother or sister), grandparents or their respective spouses and grandchildren.

- **Independent Contractors**: individuals receiving 1099 forms. This does not necessarily include landscaping and maintenance companies, or others who have no involvement in the delivery of or billing for care, services and/or supplies.
- **Knowingly**: to act with actual knowledge, deliberate ignorance, or a reckless disregard for the truth or the falsity of information.
- **Misconduct**: Any action, behavior, or failure to act that is not in conformity with Catholic Charities’ standards, guidelines, or procedures or that is a violation of any federal, state, or local law or regulation.
- **Negligent**: exhibiting lack of care or concern.
- **Non-compliance**: Failure or refusal to act in accordance with this Compliance Plan, or other standards or procedures, or with federal, state, or local laws or regulations.
- **Potential Referral Source**: includes a physician, nurse or social worker who could reasonably be a source of referral of patients to CCDR for services or treatment.
- **Private payor programs**: Any payor of healthcare services other than Medicare or Medicaid, including but not limited to private individuals and insurance plans.
- **Other Representatives**: volunteers, vendors and others affiliated with CCDR.
- **Overpayment**: Payment of an amount greater than required or permitted by law, regulation agreement.
- **Qui Tam Relator**: individuals who bring an action on behalf of the United States under the federal False Claims Act or on behalf of New York State under the New York State False Claims Act. Qui Tam Relators may share in a percentage of the proceeds from an FCA action or settlement. Also known as “whistleblowers”.
- **Qui Tam Statutory Protections & Remedies**: Both the Federal False Claims Act and New York State False Claims Act protect qui tam plaintiffs who are demoted, suspended, threatened, harassed or in any other manner discriminated against in the terms and conditions of employment by his or her employer because of lawful acts done by the employee on behalf of the employer or on behalf of the government in furtherance of an investigation for, initiation of, or testimony for, or assistance in an action to be filed in court under the qui tam statute. This provision allows reinstatement, double back pay, interest on the back pay, plus special damages including litigation costs and reasonable attorney fees.
- **Regional Compliance Officer**: An individual designated within each of the regional agencies, who is assigned the responsibility of executing and maintaining an effective compliance program for their respective area.
- **Regulatory Violation**: any action that constitutes fraud, abuse, or a violation of a federal, state, or local law or regulation.
- **Relative**: any person who is related by blood or marriage, or whose relationship with the employee, Agent or Board Member is similar to that of persons who are related by blood or marriage.
- **State Program**: Medicaid or any other program funded in whole or part by New York State.
- **Supervisor**: one who supervises or manages the activities of any CCDR employee or other representative.
- **Unusual Gain**: refers to gifts, bribes, product bonuses, special fringe benefits, unusual price breaks and other windfalls designed to ultimately benefit the employer, the employee, Agent or both or that would reasonably be determined to influence the employer, employee, Agent or both.
- **Waste**: unnecessary expenditures or to use carelessly.
- **Whistleblower**: (see Qui Tam Relator) an informant within an organization who discloses insider information of wrongdoing.
- **Whistleblower Laws**: In general Whistleblower laws are laws that describe a.) what types of activities constitute wrongdoing and should be reported; b.) what types of actions an informant may take to report wrongdoing; and c.) what protections are provided to the whistleblower under the relevant law. The following Whistleblower laws apply to CCDR: the Federal False Claims Act, the New York State False Claims Act, the New York State Labor Law, and the New York State Civil Service Law.
- **Whistleblower Protections**: protection provided under the federal law and the State False Claims Act to whistleblowers who are discharged, demoted, suspended, threatened, harassed or in any other manner discriminated against in terms and conditions of their employment as a result of their furtherance of an action under the federal law or the State False Claims Act.

Appendix B: Compliance Plan Healthcare Laws & Regulations

Set forth below are some of the major federal statutes specifically applicable to healthcare providers. This outline is not intended to identify all applicable laws. All affected individuals should promptly consult the Compliance & Ethics Office with specific questions.

Anti-Kickback Law

Offering, paying, soliciting, or receiving any remuneration, in cash or kind, in return for or to induce the referral of an individual for a service or supply payable under any federal healthcare program. Remuneration may include kickback payments, bribes, rebates, etc.

Federal False Claim Act

A Federal law that imposes liability on any person who submits a claim to the Federal government that he or she knows (or should know) is false. The False Claims Act also imposes liability on an individual who may knowingly submit a false record in order to obtain payment from the government. The third area of liability includes those instances in which someone may obtain money from the Federal government to which he or she may not be entitled, and then uses false statements or records in order to retain the money. The Act provides that private parties may bring an action on behalf of the United States. These private parties are known as “qui tam relators”.

HIPAA

A federal law titled “Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act”. Regulations issued under HIPAA protect the privacy of health information and identifying information for all Americans. HIPAA went into effect on April 14, 2003.

New York State False Claims Act

New York’s false claims laws fall into two categories: civil and administrative laws; and criminal laws. Some apply to recipient false claims and some apply to provider false claims, and while most are specific to healthcare or Medicaid, some of the “common law” crimes apply to areas of interaction with the government.

- **Civil and Administrative**: Closely tracks the federal False Claims Act. It imposes penalties and fines on individuals and entities that file false or fraudulent claims for payment from any state or local government, including healthcare programs such as Medicaid.
- **Criminal**: Various laws, including Social Services Laws and Penal Laws, detail the penalties, sanctions, and fines associated with submitting or causing to submit a false claim or statement.

Patient Protection Affordable Care Act

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) is a federal statute that was signed into law in the United States by President Barack Obama on March 23, 2010. The Act is the product of the health care reform agenda of the Democratic 111th Congress and the Obama administration. The law includes numerous health-related provisions to take effect over a four-year period, including prohibiting denial of coverage/claims based on pre-existing conditions, expanding Medicaid eligibility, subsidizing insurance premiums, providing incentives for businesses to provide health care benefits, establishing health insurance exchanges, and support for medical research.

Fraud Enforcement Recovery Act

The Fraud Enforcement and Recovery Act of 2009, or FERA, Pub.L. 111-21, 123 Stat. 1617, S. 386, is a public law in the United States enacted in 2009. The law takes a number of steps to enhance criminal enforcement of federal fraud laws, especially regarding financial institutions, mortgage fraud, and securities fraud or commodities fraud. American Recovery Reinvestment Act The American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, abbreviated ARRA (Pub.L. 111-5), and commonly referred to as the Stimulus or The Recovery Act, is an economic stimulus package enacted by the 111th United States Congress in February 2009. The stimulus was intended to create jobs and promote investment and consumer spending during the recession. The Act includes federal tax incentives, expansion of unemployment benefits and other social welfare provisions, and domestic spending in education, health care, and infrastructure, including the energy sector. The Act also includes numerous non-economic recovery related items that were either part of longer- term plans (e.g., a study of the effectiveness of medical treatments) or desired by Congress.

Health Information Technology for Economic Clinical Health Act

The ARRA HITECH Act is concerned with defining the requirements for being compatible with the security and privacy regulations of the Privacy Rule. HITECH also facilitates the expansion of HIPAA Act EMR standards that aid in electronic exchange of health information on a national basis to make medical care more organized and transparent. It is also concerned with putting forth incentives for covered entities that adopt Electronic Health Records (EHR). With HITECH setting new benchmarks for clarifying the requirements to become HIPAA compliant, those who choose to be non-compliant have become more vulnerable to civil penalties. Further, non-compliance with HIPAA Privacy Rule almost entirely excludes covered entities from receiving any kind of financial incentive for adopting EHR.

Appendix C - NYCRR Part 512, Requirements of a Provider Compliance Program

NOTE: NEW YORK STATE LAW REQUIRES:

“Required providers’ compliance programs shall be applicable to: (7) other risk areas that are or should with due diligence be identified by the provider.” . . . “(6) a system for routine identification of compliance risk areas specific to the provider type, for self-evaluation of such risk areas.” . . . “shall be deemed in compliance with the provisions of this Part, so long as such plans adequately address medical assistance program risk areas and compliance issues.” As such, it is very important that there is some mechanism to address risk areas.

http://www.omig.state.ny.us/data/images/stories/provider_compliance/adopted_regulations_521.pdf

FOOD BANK OF THE SOUTHERN TIER
Board of Directors

2019 APPOINTMENTS
COMMITTEE MEMBERS & DOR REPRESENTATIVE

Deleted: 8

Board of Directors

1. Nancy Miller, Chairperson
2. Joe Thomas, Vice Chairperson
3. Steve Hoyt, Treasurer
4. Mary Pat Dolan, Secretary
5. Carin Rouleau
6. Peter Newman
7. Grace Kelly
8. Sheri Hughey
9. Michael Eisner
10. John Bayne
11. Alison Wolfe
12. Christina Sonsire
13. Jessica Renner
14. Shannon Matteson
15. Karl Krebs
16. Lorna Swaine-Abdallah

Representative of FBST Board of Directors to Diocesan Catholic Charities Board of Directors:

1. Carin Rouleau

Executive Committee:

1. Nancy Miller, Board Chairperson & Committee Chairperson ex officio
2. Joe Thomas, Board Vice Chairperson & Committee Member ex officio
3. Steve Hoyt, Board Treasurer & Committee Member ex officio
4. Mary Pat Dolan, Board Secretary & Committee Member ex officio
5. Natasha Thompson, President/CEO & Committee Member ex officio*
6. Tony Barbaro, Associate Diocesan Director & Committee Member ex officio

Finance & Audit Committee:

1. Steve Hoyt, Board Treasurer & Committee Chairperson ex officio
2. Shannon Matteson, Board Member & Committee Vice Chair
3. Karl Krebs, Board Member
4. Michael Eisner, Board Member
5. Dick Pirozzolo, Committee Member
6. Krista Niles-Updyke, Committee Member
7. Mark Hillegas, Committee Member
8. Linda Bruckner, Committee Member
9. Nancy Miller, Board Chairperson & Committee Member ex officio
10. Natasha Thompson, President/CEO & Committee Member ex officio*
11. Tim Currie, Chief Operating Officer & Committee Member ex officio *

Audit Committee:

Nominating & Corporate Governance (N&CG) Committee:

1. Grace Kelly, Board Member and Committee Chairperson
2. Mary Pat Dolan, Board Member & Committee Vice Chair
3. Maureen Ferrell, Committee Member
4. Bill Powell, Committee Member

Formatted: Highlight

Deleted: <#>Ola Olude-Afolabi, Committee Member

Deleted: ¶

Commented [NT2]: Possible BOD Candidate?

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Deleted: <#>Lee Randall, Catholic Charities Finance Director & Committee Member ex officio

Deleted: *¶

Commented [NT4]: Should we ask current Audit Com members if they would like to join the Finance Committee?

Deleted: <#>Mary Pat Dolan, Board Member and Committee Chairperson ¶
<#>Patty McLellan, Committee Member¶
<#>Meghan Rose, Committee Member¶
<#>Nancy Miller, Board Chairperson & Committee Member ex officio¶
<#>Natasha Thompson, President/CEO & Committee Member ex officio*¶
<#>Tim Currie, Chief Operating Officer & Committee Member ex officio*¶

Commented [NT5]: Needs new members!

Deleted: <#>Dave Radin, Board Member¶

5. Nancy Miller, Board Chairperson & Committee Member ex officio
6. Natasha Thompson, President/CEO & Committee Member ex officio*

Deleted: <#>Danielle Farnbaugh, FBST Grants Manager*¶

Development Committee:

1. John Bayne, Board Member & Committee Chairperson
2. [REDACTED]
3. Peter Newman, Board Member
4. Joe Thomas, Board Member
5. Alison Wolfe, Board Member
6. Jessica Renner, Board Member
7. Brigid Allinger, Committee Member
8. John Alexander, Committee Member
9. Marci Daniels, Committee Member
10. Rebecca Sexton, Committee Member
11. Nancy Miller, Board Chairperson & Committee Member ex officio
12. Natasha Thompson, President/CEO & Committee Member ex officio*

Deleted: John Bayne, Board Member & Committee Vice Chair

Formatted: Highlight

Advocacy Committee (Ad-hoc):

1. Mark Bordeau, Board Member and Committee Chairperson
2. Sheri Hughey, Board Member
3. Christina Sonsire, Board Member
4. Lorna Swaine-Abdallah, Board Member
5. Emily Hofelich, Committee Member & Agency Representative
6. Catherine Rogers, Committee Member & Client Representative
7. Wendy Pursel, Community Member & Client Representative
8. Nancy Eckstrom, Committee Member & Partner Representative
9. Erin Summerlee, Committee Member & Partner Representative
10. Steve Fowler, Committee Member
11. Maggie Coffey, Committee Member
12. Nancy Miller, Board Chairperson & Committee Member ex officio
13. Natasha Thompson, President/CEO & Committee Member ex officio*
14. Randi Quackenbush, Advocacy & Education Manager & Committee Member ex officio*

Commented [NT6]: Not sure if he will have the time if he is elected to the county legislature

NOTES: * denotes non-voting members

Created: 5/29/18

Update: 10/15/18

Deleted: Updated: 9/22/17, 11/14/17, 12/1/17